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December 15, 2002

Senator Charles Grassley

United States Senate

Washington, DC 20510


Ref: Attacks Upon Whistleblowers and Relationship to Success Of 19 Hijackers on 9-11

To Senator Grassley:


In response to your “shock” about the verbal abuse inflicted upon FBI Agent John Roberts for testifying before Congress about the FBI having a double standard for discipline, I wish to ratchet up your “shock-tolerance” with the following highlights. They also show the primary blame for the success of 19 hijackers on September 11, 2001, and a slew of other aviation disasters, that you and a slew of other “leaders” are covering up.


The Primary Blame For September 11, 2001


Starting in reverse, as it relates to the 3,000 deaths arising from the success of 19 hijackers on September 11, 2001, common sense indicates that the success of 19 hijackers seizing four airliners was primarily due to “failures” in the government aviation safety offices. Forty years of fatal hijackings, easily preventable, as reported by federal aviation safety agents—including me, where these offices have the responsibilities to order preventative measures, obviously indicates a “problem.” Blaming the tragedies on failure to be informed of the impending hijackings, “intelligence failures,” indicates a lack of common sense, aviation ignorance, and/or deliberate diversionary tactics to cover up for the primary blame for 3,000 deaths.


Unusual Aviation Credentials
 For Determining Blame For Success Of 19 Hijackers


I have an unusual background and qualifications that continues from before the December 7 Pearl Harbor attack to the present date. As a federal aviation safety agent I was given the assignment to correct the conditions resulting in the worst series of airline disasters in the country’s history. Included in that list of aviation disasters was a United Airlines DC-8 that crashed into New York City, a mile from where the World Trade Center was later built. That crash was the worlds worst at that time, and was made possible by deep-seated corruption at United Airlines and within the Federal Aviation Administration and the widespread cover-up of these crimes.


In that position I documented deep-seated hardcore corruption that enabled many preventable airline disasters to occur—including hijackings. So deep-seated was this corruption preventing the federal government from meeting its aviation safety responsibilities that I acted the part of an independent prosecutor in the FAA for six months. During this period I caused testimony and documents to be entered into a 4,000-page hearing transcript proving my charges of deep-seated corruption enabling a series of aviation disasters to occur. During the hearing, three additional fatal crashes occurred in m y area of federal aviation safety responsibilities, caused by precisely the same problems that I discovered, sought to report, sought to correct, all prevented by widespread FAA cover-up. 


This is the same culture that prevented preventative measures taken to block terrorist attacks. The retaliation I suffered caused me to leave government employment. The corruption, the crashes, and the related deaths continued, the latest being the events of 9-11 that could have been easily prevented but for the corrupt culture and cover-ups.


Examples Of Corruption Discovered, Reported, and Covered Up


The documented misconduct preventing the federal government from carrying out its aviation safety responsibilities, which was brought out in that FAA hearing, was the following:

· Air safety inspectors warned by FAA management not to make reports of safety problems or safety violations, despite the requirement to do so. The reason given was that the office—and FAA management—looked badly when there was a crash caused by conditions known to exist and which were not acted upon. 

· FAA management unlawfully removing legal reports on air safety problems and air safety violations and giving them back to the inspectors, telling them these were not wanted; or FAA management destroyed the reports. Many crashes were associated with these problems

· FAA management retaliating against those inspectors who continued to attempt to make reports, or who initiated corrective actions on major safety problems that they were required to take under federal directives.

· Overall, FAA management repeatedly covered up for major safety problems, refusal of favored airlines (like United Airlines) to provide government required pilot training and competency checks, and routinely covered up and refused to act or allow inspectors to act on serious safety problems—even while they were resulting in a series of crashes.

· Harassment and retaliation against those federal air safety inspectors who tried to carry out their aviation safety duties.

· Among the many serious safety areas that I and other inspectors sought to report or act upon—which were involved in a continuing series of airline crashes—was training that did not meet acceptable standards; an anything-goes competency standards at politically powerful airlines (especially United Airlines); depriving pilots and engineers known to have safety deficiencies from receiving corrective training; falsifying records to hide the refusal by United Airlines to provide legally required training and competency checks; and falsification by United Airlines personnel of records relating to these matters; dangerous high-sink-rate approach procedures by pilots at United Airlines; poor knowledge of emergency procedures; poor piloting by certain pilots; sham training and competency checks of flight engineers and pilots; hijackings events that were easily preventable; and much more.  

· Cover-ups by the political NTSB board members, requiring falsification of accident reports of subsequent airline crashes made possible by the cover-ups. 

Steps Taken By Me To Report These Deadly Criminal Activities 

While Federal Aviation Safety Agent


The following steps were taken by me to report these federal crimes, while a federal air safety inspector in the most crash-plagued program in U.S. history included the following cover-ups:

· Reports to higher FAA hierarchy, followed by cover-up.

· Reports to NTSB political Board members. Same cover-up.

· Reports to FBI and U.S. attorney. Same cover-up.

· Reports to members of Congress. Sympathy, concern, and cover-up.

The recipients of these reports had a duty under their government positions, and under the federal crime reporting statute,
 to receive my evidence. By blocking these reports, their obstruction of justice violated other federal criminal statutes.

Steps Taken By Me After Leaving Government Service 

To Report Corruption Affecting Aviation Safety and National Security


My concern about the deadly consequences of the arrogance and corruption caused me to circumvent the cover-ups by using my assets
 to fund certain activities, seeking to force corrective actions. These activities included:

· I filed federal lawsuits
 to report the criminal activities in the government’s aviation safety offices. These lawsuits were filed pursuant to the federal crime reporting statute (18 U.S.C. § 4),
 and Title 28 U.S.C. § 1361 that permitted anyone to seek a court order requiring a federal official to perform his or her legal duty and to halt unlawful conduct. 

· Initially, federal district and appellate judges admitted the gravity of my charges. But upon motion of Justice Department lawyers, federal judges dismissed the lawsuits. These dismissals prevented me from providing evidence to a federal judge of the federal crimes that they must receive as part of their administrative duties under Title 18 U.S.C. § 4. Despite admitting the gravity of my charges, several district and appellate judges claimed that these were matters for Congress and not the courts. Under the clear wording of the statutes, federal judges had responsibilities to receive the evidence of federal crimes.

· Seeking to circumvent these cover-ups, I authored and published books with the intent to inform the motivate the public about these serious matters. The first of four editions of Unfriendly Skies was published in 1978. 

· I started appearing as guest and expert on radio and television shows, which number over 3,000 at this time. The book, and these appearances, was threatening to expose people in key government positions who were either directly implicated or implicated through cover-ups in these criminal activities.

· Because of the public exposure from the books and radio-TV appearances, other former and present government agents started providing me information and documentation on areas of corruption in government offices beyond the aviation environment. These agents were from, among others, the CIA, ONI, FBI, DEA, and Customs. The corruption they had discovered was inflicting great harm upon national security. They also provided the basis for me to write other books
 seeking to inform the public of these matters.

· Examples of the criminal activities provided to me from insiders included drug smuggling into the United States by persons acting under cover of government positions; CIA looting of savings and loans; massive corruption in the bankruptcy courts; unlawful funding and buildup of Iraq’s military machine during the 1980s; conduct enabling up to 100 surface-to-air missiles to be diverted to terrorists that Afghan warlord Rashid Dostum had offered to the United States in 1995; and much more.

· The misconduct also included the practice of retaliation against government agents to block their reporting of criminal and even subversive activities. One example was the retaliation against the agent who discovered suitcase nuclear devices being smuggled from Russia through Lithuania and who discovered that the CIA and FBI had double agents working for the Soviet Union and Russia. Another example was retaliation against a Customs agent to halt his investigation into the drug-money sources of the Jersey City terrorists who subsequently bombed the World Trade Center in 1993. And of course, the continuous series of retaliation against me that inflicted great personal and financial harm upon me which escalated to where the federal courts were made into a criminal racketeering enterprise—going all the way to the U.S. Supreme Court!

· Starting in 1986, and continuing to this date, the following tactics were used in a parallel attempt to block my reporting of criminal activities in government offices: 

· Every attempt to report the criminal activities was blocked by federal judges in the district and appellate courts. Every lawsuit, which included a demand to provide information and evidence from me and my group of other former and present government agents, was promptly dismissed, sometimes without any notice. Every dismissal violated the bar against dismissal when federal causes of actions are stated in the complaint, Every one constituted obstruction of justice
 by blocking the reporting of federal crimes.  

· Starting in 1986, federal judges issued a series of unlawful and unconstitutional injunctions permanently barring me from filing any papers in the district and appellate courts. These injunctions are still being enforced. Their effect—and obviously their intent—was to block the reports of the criminal activities affecting aviation interests and other matters, including national security. The orders also assisted the sham lawsuit filed by the CIA-front law firm of Friedman, Sloan and Ross (San Francisco), that targeted the $10 million in assets that funded my attempts to expose these crimes against the United States.

· In one instance, when I sought to report federal crimes related to the funding of Iranian terrorists involved in the October Surprise operation, and to report drug smuggling involved in the Contra operation, Justice Department lawyers and federal judges charged me with criminal contempt of court. They sought to support that charge on the basis that I had been permanently barred from federal courts. Criminal contempt of court for attempting to report criminal activities—including those criminal activities that would later be involved in the events of September 11—showed the consequences of the judicial and Justice Department obstruction of justice and felony retaliation against a former federal aviation safety agent.

· Federal judges, who had been involved in the felony obstruction of justice, then denied me a jury trial, held me guilty of criminal contempt of court, and at the age of 69, shortly after undergoing a six-bypass open-heart surgery, sentenced me to six months in federal prison, which included eight weeks in solitary confinement. These were among the many tactics used to block me from reporting the criminal activities that were subverting national interests, and which made possible such tragedies as the 3,000 deaths on September 11. 

· While in prison, a federal judge issued an order seizing my assets,
 which was issued without a hearing, without notice of hearing, without legal cause, and under conditions indicating fraud. Orders were then issued barring me from filing any objection to the seizure and subsequent liquidation of my $10 million in assets. When I did file an objection, it was unfiled and I was again charged with criminal contempt of court.  I was denied funds to hire legal counsel from my seized assets, denied appointment of legal counsel, found guilty, and again sentenced to federal prison by Chapter 11 judge Edward Jellen (Oakland, California)

· In an attempt to make a judicial record of the congressional cover-ups, I filed a federal lawsuit against members of Congress.
 The lawsuit charged them with covering up the criminal and subversive activities that I brought to their attention—including the deep-seated corruption in the government’s aviation safety offices and corruption related to terrorist activities. In their response to the lawsuit, these members of Congress did not deny that I made them aware of these federal crimes. Nor did they deny doing nothing in response to my serious charges. Their only response was that they were immune from the consequences. The lawsuit was then dismissed.

· In the 1990s I sent numerous letters to members of Congress informing them of additional areas of criminal activities, most of which affected national security, most of which I learned from my many government insiders. These additional matters increased the dangers from terrorist activities, including surface-to-air missiles, theft of Russian suitcase nuclear bombs, spies in the CIA and FBI, and other national security matters. Even when I sent a three-page highly detailed letter to every member of the House and Senate intelligence committees warning of surface-to-air missiles about to be obtained by terrorists, which was based upon information and documentation provided to me by one of my CIA sources who was formerly the head of a large and secret CIA financial operation based in Honolulu, not a single member of Congress responded. TWA 800 went down about seven months later, with strong evidence of a missile having downed the aircraft.


· On March 24, 2000, I sought to report the criminal activities that I and my group of other government agents had discovered, and simultaneously exercised federal remedies for the violations of federally protected rights that were parallel efforts to block my reporting activities. That lawsuit went into details about the misuse of the courts to block my reporting of federal crimes—including those that would be primarily responsible for the success of 19 hijackers 18 months later. As in every other lawsuit, it was dismissed in clear violation of legal and constitutional due process remedies. I filed timely notice of appeal, but Ninth Circuit appellant judges blocked me from filing the appeal brief on the basis that ten years earlier orders had been rendered barring me for the remainder of my life from filing papers in the district or appellate courts. 

· Warning letters were sent to U.S. Attorney General Ashcroft and FBI Director Mueller, warning of these matters affecting aviation and terrorist activities. None responded. I sent letters to members of Congress offering to provide evidence of corruption affecting aviation and terrorist areas. None responded. (These letters are found at www.defraudingamerica.com)



Continuing Obstruction Of Justice By Federal Judges After September 11, 2001

· On June 12, 2002, I filed a lawsuit in the U.S. district court at Washington, D.C., seeking to report the criminal activities that I and my group of other government agents had discovered, including that which enabled 19 hijackers to seize four airliners. That lawsuit was promptly dismissed without notice on July 1, 2002. I then filed a notice of appeal and submitted my appeal brief on December 10, 2002. It is expected that the appeal will be dismissed and the lower court’s dismissal affirmed, despite the 3,000 deaths made possible by prior judicial cover-ups. 

· On August 8, 2002, I sent to the U.S. district court in New York a lawsuit seeking to report the criminal activities under 18 U.S.C. § 4 that I and other government agents had discovered. These federal offenses were especially related to the primary blame for the success of 19 hijackers on 9-11. The court, including chief judge Murasey, blocked that lawsuit from being filed. Papers were sent acknowledging receipt of the lawsuit, delaying its filing, and then another contradictory letter stated they know of no lawsuit being submitted. 


Everyone Knew They Were Blocking Reporting Of 


Criminal Activities That Has A History Of Deadly Consequences


During the entire period described in this letter, everyone involved knew they were blocking the reporting of major crimes against the United States that were inflicting great and irreparable harm upon national security and other national interests, and that people were dying in the process. Even after the 3,000 deaths on September 11 that were made possible by these criminal offices, the cover-ups continued. 

Further details on these matters can be found at the Internet sites shown at the top of this letter.

I realize that addressing the source of the primary blame for the events of 9-11 requires stepping on some powerful toes, and I haven’t seen anyone in my many years of exposing corruption in high government offices willing to address these Trojan horse type of problems subverting vital U.S. interests. In the case of lawyers, it is far easier—and without the hazards—of diverting attention to defendants who can’t bite back.

Blocking and Then Subverting Investigation Into Blame 

For Success Of 19 Hijackers and 3,000 deaths.

Duplicating what I have documented for years, the reaction to the slaughter occurring on September 11, 2001, was first blocked by President George Bush, with refusal of members of Congress to initiate a meaningful investigation. The “investigation” that was made by members of Congress was a cover-up, by:

· Refusing to address the corruption in the government’s aviation safety offices that I and other federal aviation safety agents had documented.
· Perpetrating the crimes off obstruction of justice and misprision of felonies, through their cover-ups. Most members of the “investigating” group had received detailed information from me that showed the primary blame for the events of 9-11. They showed contempt for the 3,000 deaths that occurred, compounded by enabling the 3,000 deaths to occur by their earlier obstruction of justice. 
Insuring Continuation Of Prior Aviation Disasters and Harm To National Security

You expressed crocodile tears over harsh words made against FBI agent John Roberts for subjective comments about the attitude in FBI offices. But you simultaneously cover-up for hardcore criminal activities that not only made 3,000 deaths possible on 9-11 possible and years of prior preventable aviation tragedies. In addition, the criminal activities that I and my group of other government whistleblowers discovered are subverting national security far beyond the aviation environment.

The crimes that you and many other members of Congress have committed, along with the judicial retaliation, are far greater and are harming the United States far more than the offenses perpetrated by most federal prisoners. The involvement in criminal activities by so many of U.S. “leaders” insures that any commission or congressional investigation into  the events of September 11, 2001, will be to control the outcome.











Sincerely,











Rodney Stich

cc:
Senators Patrick J. Leahy and Orrin Hatch; Representatives Frank Wolf and James Sensenbrenner.

Attachments: sample flyers and informational ads in mainstream publications.


Further related information at the following Internet sites:

www.defraudingamerica.com
www.druggingamerica.com
www.unfriendlyskies.com

� Navy patrol plane commander in World War II, international airline captain after the war, one of the first pilots licensed by Japan and one of the first pilots flying for Japan Airlines, qualified in many types of airliner aircraft, the author of numerous books on air safety. I was a government air safety inspector-investigator conducting flights checks and examination of air safety problems with numerous pre-accident reports of major safety problems. While a federal aviation safety agent I was given the assignment to correct the conditions resulting in the worst series of airline crashes in the nation’s history. In addition, I became the focal point for dozens of other government agents providing me with information on corruption in government offices that was inflicting great harm upon national security.


� Title 18 U.S.C. § 4. Misprision of felony. Whoever, having knowledge of the actual commission of a felony cognizable by a court of the United States, conceals and does not as soon as possible make known the same to some judge or other person in civil or military authority under the United States, shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than three years, or both.


� Obstruction of justice violated Title 18 U.S.C. §§ 2, 3, and 4.


� My assets consisted of real estate holdings that I had acquired as an airline captain before entering government service.


� Stich v. United States, et al., 554 F.2d 1070 (9th Cir.) (tab�le), cert. denied, 434 U.S. 920 (1977)(addressed hard-core air safety misconduct, violations of federal air safety laws, threats against government inspectors not to report safety violations and misconduct); Stich v. National Transportation Safety Board, 685 F.2d 446 (9th Cir.)(table), cert. denied, 459 U.S. 861 (1982))(addressed repeated criminal falsification of official airline accident reports, omitting highly sensitive air safety misconduct, making possible repeated crashes from the same sequestered problems); Amicus curiae brief filed on July 17, 1975, in the Paris DC-10 multi-district litigation, Flanagan v. McDonnell Douglas Corporation and United States of America, Civil Action 74-808-PH, MDL 172, Central District California.)(addressing the long standing FAA misconduct, of which the cover-up of the DC-10 cargo door problem was one of repeated instances of tragedy related misconduct); U.S. v. Department of Justice, District of Columbia, Nos. 86-2523, 87-2214, and other actions filed by Stich seeking to expose and correct the powerful and covert air disaster misconduct.


� Title 18 U.S.C. § 4. Misprision of felony. Whoever, having knowledge of the actual commission of a felony cognizable by a court of the United States, conceals and does not as soon as possible make known the same to some judge or other person in civil or military authority under the United States, shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than three years, or both.


� The other books, based upon years of information from government whistleblowers, included multiple editions of Drugging America, Defrauding America, and single issues of Disavow and Terrorism Against America.


� Obstruction of justice violated Title 18 U.S.C. §§ 2, 3, and 4.


� Retaliation against a former federal aviation safety agent or witness are crimes under Title 18 U.S.C. §§ 1512, 1513.


� Although my $10 million in assets were in excellent financial condition, the sham lawsuit in California resulted in lis pendens placed on all my assets, preventing loans from being rolled over when they came due, causing me to lose valuable properties. The refusal of federal judges to allow me to proceed under the Civil Rights Act and Declaratory Judgment Act to halt the violations, caused me to exercise Chapter 11, where I (foolishly) sought to force a federal judge to exercise his legal responsibilities.


� Lawsuit against certain members of Congress was filed in U.S. district court, Washington, D.C. 
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